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UNITED STATES DISTRICTCOURT Ay~ |
i CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA OR' Gl N AL

- L]

nasa

COMMODITY FUTURES TRADING ) Case No. 01-06926 JFW (RZx)

COMMISSION, : )
Plaintiff,
vs | ) [RROPOSED) CONSENT ORDER
: ) OF PERMANENT INJUNCTION
ACRO INF ORMATION SERVICE, ) AND OTHER EQUITABLE RELIEF
INC.,, a California Corporation, ) RE ANDREW WAI, ACRO
PAKCO HOLDINGS LIMITED, a ) INFORMATION SERVICE, INC,,
Nevada Corporation, Dr. ) AND PAKCO HOLDINGS LIMITED
FLORENTIUS CHAN, SANDYH. )
CHAN and ANDREW TAIl WAl aka )
ANDREW HONGCHOW WAI, )
Defendants ) THIS CONSTITUTES. NOTICE OF ENTRY
; AS REQUIRED BY FRCP RULE 71(d).

On August 9, 2001, Plaintiff Commodity Futures Trading Commission (the
“Commission™) filed a complaint against Andrew Tai Wai a/k/a Andrew
Hongchow Wai (“Wai”), Acro Information Service, Inc., (“Acro”), and Pakco
Holdings Limited (“Pakco”) and others seeking injunctive and other cquitablc
relief, as well as the imposition of civil penalties, for violations, |
Exchange Act as amended (the “Act”), 7 U.S.C. §§ 1 et seq. (I 9
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CONSENTS AND AGREEMENTS

To effect settlement of the matters alleged in the Complaint agaihsf Wai,
Acro, and Pakco without a trial on the merits or any further judicial proceedings,
Wai, Acro, and Pakco:

1. Without admitting or denying the Findings and Conclusions contained
herein, consent to the entry of this Consent Order for Permanent Injunction and
Other Equitable Relief (the "Order"). ' |

2. Affirm that they have agreed to this Order voluntarily, and that no
promise or threat has been made by the Commission or any member, officer, agent
or representative thereof, or by any other person, to induce consent to this Order,
other than as set forth specifically herein.

3. Acknowledge service of the Summons and Complaint.

4. Admit jurisdiction of this Court over them and the subject matter of
this action pursuant to Section 6c of the Act, 7 U.S.C. § 13a-1 (2001).

S. Admit that venue properly lies with this Court pursuant to Section 6¢c
of the Act, 7 U.S.C. § 13a-1 (2001). |

6. Waijve: |

a. all claims which they may possess under the Equal Access to

Justice Act, 5 U.S.C. § 504 (1994) and 28 U.S.C. § 2412 (1994), as amended

by Pub. L. No. 104-121, §§ 231-32, 110 Stat. 862-63, and Part 148 of the

Regulations, 17 C.F.R. § 148.1, et seq. (2001), re‘lating to, or arising from,

this action;

b. any claim ofdouble Jeopardy based upon the institution of this
proceeding or the entry in this proceeding of any order imposing injunctive
and any other equitable relief; |

c. all rights of appeal from this Order; and
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d. the entry of Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Lawm this action
pufsuant 1o Fed. R. Civ. P. 52, except as provided in Part II belbjw.
7.  Consent to the continued jurisdiction of this Court for the.pu_xposc of
enforcing the terms and conditions of this Order and for any other purposes

relevant to this case.
I

FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS

This Court makes the following Findings and Conclusions:

3. | From at Jeast May 22, 2001, continuing to August 13, 2001, _Wai,
Acro, and Pakeo violated Section 4(2) of the Commodity Exchange Act, 7 U.S.C. §
6(a) (2001).

9.‘ From at least May 22, 2001, and continuing to August 13, 2001, Waj,
Acro and Pakco violated Section 4b(2)(i) and (iii) of the Act, 7 U.S.C. § 6b(a)(i)
and (iti) (2001).

10. WAi, Acro, and Pakco have consented to the entry of this C:onsen_t
Order of Permanent Injunction and Other Equitable Relief, which Consent is filed
concurrently hefc_with. | |

II1.
ORDER FOR PERMANENT INJUNCTION

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED THAT:

11. Wali, Acro, and Pakco and any person insofar as he or she is éc‘ti-n'g in
the capacity of ofﬁcer, agent, servant, employee, or attorney of Wai, Acro, and

Pakeo, and any person insofar as he or she is acting in active concert or participation




-

w

V- BRI R N

10
11

12 |

13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

JUL @2 2093 18:27 FR 9938 WRO/ENF

318 235 6782 TO S128241855193 P.B85-23
s wO X LIOV FAUL Dras nigntrax

with Wai, Acro, and Pakco who receives actual notice of this Order by personal
service or otherwise, are perrnanently enjoined from directly or indirectly violating,
or aiding and abetting any other person in violating, Section 4(a) of the Act, 7
U.S.C. § 6(a)(2001) by offering to enter into, entering into, executing, cdn_ﬁrming
the execution of, or conducting business for the purpose of soliciting, accepting
any order for, or otherwise dealing in any transaction in, or in connection with, a
contract for the purchase or sale of a commodity for future delivery, when: |

(A) such transactions have not been conducted on or subject to the rules of a
board of trade which has been designated or registered by the Commission as a
contract market or derivatives transaction execution facility for such commodity;
and

(B) such contracts have not been executed or consummated by or thropgh a
member of a contract market.

12. Wai, Acro, and Pakco and any person insofar as he or she Is act;_ng in
the capacity of officer, agent, servant, employee, or attorney of Wai, Acro, or
Pakco, and any person insofar as he or she is acting in active concert or |
participation with Wai, Acro, or Pakco who receives actual notice of this Order by
personal service or otherwise, are permanently enjoined from directly or indirectly:

A. Inor in connection with any order to make, or the making of, any

contract of sale of any commodity for future delivery, made, or to be made, for or on

behalf of any other person if such contract for future delivery is or may be used for
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(A) hedging any transaction in interstate commerce in such commodit;yjor the.
products or byproducts thereof, or (B) determining the price basis of any transaction
in interstate commerce in such commodity, or (C) delivering any such éommodity
sold, shipped, or received in interstate commerce for the fulﬁl!ment.th;éreof:

(i) Cheating or defrauding or attempting to cheat or-@deﬁ'aud such -

1| other person, in violation of Section 4b(a)(i) of the Act, 7U.S.C. § 6b(a)(ij (2001),

(i1) Willfully deceiving or attempting to deceive such other person by
any means whatsoever in regard to any such order or contract or the :dispo_siition or
execution of any such order or contract, or in regard to any act of agén‘cy |
performed with respect to such order or contract for such person, in violation of
Section 4b(a)(iii) of the Act, 7 U.S.C. § 6b(a)(iii) (2001).

13.  Wai, Acro, and Pakco and any person insofar as he or she is acting m
the capacity of officer, agent, servant, employee, or attorney of Wai, Acro, or
Pakeo, and any person insofar as he or she is acting in active concert ;3r
participation with Wai, Acro, or Pakco who receives actual notice .of Such order by
personal service or otherwise, are ;;ennanently enjoined from directly‘ or indirectly:

A. Trading on or subject to the rules of any registered entity as defined by the
Act and any other entity subject to the jurisdiction of the Commission;

B. Engaging in, controlling, or directing'the trading of any fumfes or optioﬁs
account for or on behalf of any other person or entity, whether by povv{er of

attorney or otherwise;
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C. Soliciting or accepting any funds from any person in connection with the
purchase or sale of any commodity futures or option on futures ("comr_nodity
interest") contract, placing orders, giving advice or price quotations or other
information in connection with the purchase or sale of commodity interest

contracts for himself or others, introducing customers to any other person engaged

{in the business of commodity interest trading issuing statements or reports to

others concerning commodity interest trading, and otherwise engaging in any
business activities relating to commaodity interest trading; and
D. Applying for registration or claiming exemption from registration with

the Commission in any capacity, or engaging in any activity requiring registration

||or exemption from registration, except as provided for in Section 4.14(2)(9) of the

Commission’s Regulations, 17 C.F.R. § 4.14(a)(9)(2001); or acting as a principal,

agent or officer of any person registered, required to be registered, or exempted

|{ from registration with the Commission, unless such exemption is pursuant to

Section 4.14(a)(9) of the Commission’s Regulations, 17 C.F.R. § 4.14(3)(9)(20D1).
Iv. |
ORDER FOR OTHER EQUITABLE RELIEF
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED THAT:

14.  Wai shall pay a civil monetary penalty in the amount of $1 10,000 as

| follows: an annual payment to an account designated by the National Futures

Association, which shall act as Monitor, on or before July 31 of each calendar year

6
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years (or until the $110,000 is paid in full, if that happens first). Paymenfs shall be

—

made by electronic funds transfer or by U.S. postal money order, cemﬁed check,
bank cashier’s check or bank money order, made payable to the Commodxty
Futures Trading Commission and sent to Dennese Posey, or her successor, Three
Lafayette Centér, 1155 21% Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20581, under cover
letter that identifies defendan;s Wei, Acro, and Pakco and the name and docket
number of the proceeding. Wai shall simultaneously transmit a cbpy of the cover

letter and the form of payment to the National Futures Association, , and to the

W oot o e e W N

Director, Division of Enforcement, Commodity Futures Trading Commission,
Three Lafayette Center, 1155 21 Street, N.W.., Washington, D.C. 20581.
The amount of Wai’s Annual Payment shall consist of a portion of: (1) his

— et e
[ Y -~

adjusted gross income (as defined by the Internal Revenue Code) earned or

—
w

recejved by Wai during the preceding calendar year, plus (2) all other net cash

- e
v o

receipts, net cash entitlements or net proceeds of non-cash assets received by Wai

(-5

during the preceding calendar year. The Annual Payment will be determined as

—
~3

| follows:

) e e
< W oo

Total Adjusted Gross Income plus Net Percent of Total to be Paid by Wais:

MO
| N

Cash Receipts:

(84
R

30 -- $25,000 . 0%

- ¥

$25,000--$50,000 20% of the amount between $25 000
: and $50,000

[ d
(=,

[ %4
-~

$50,000 -- $100,000 20% of the amount between $25,000
and $50,000 plus 30% of the amount
between $50,000 and 100,000

[y
[
.~ oo
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$100,000 and up , 20% of the amount between $25,000
. and $50,000 plus 30% of the amount
between $50,000 and $100,000 plus
40% of the amount above $100,000
15. Wai shall provide to the Monitor complete copies of his signe'd |
income tax returns filed with the Intemnal Revenue Service ("IRS"), all iIRS 1099
forms, and all other schedu]cS and attachments (e.g., IRS Form W—_2), as well as
an)\' filings ;he is required to submit to any state tax or revenue authority, on or
before June 30 of each calendar year, commencing with June 30, 2003 and ending
on June 30,{-2013. If, during the same time period, Wai elects to file a joint tax
return, he shall provide all documents called for by this Paragraph 15, including the
signed and ﬁlcd joint tax return, plus a draft individual tax return prepared on IRS
Form 1040 containing a certification by  licensed certified public accountant that

the “Income” section (currently lines 7-22 of Form 1040) truly, accurately and

completely reflects all of the Wai’s income, that the “Adjusted Gross Income”

[ section truly, accurately and completely identifies all deductions that Wai has.a -

right to claim, and that the deductions contained in the “Adjusted Gross Income”
section are equal to or less than 50% of the deductions that Wai is entitled to claim
on the joint tax return; proviﬂed, however, that Wai may claim 100% of the .
deductions contained in the “Adjusted Gross Income” section that are solely his.

Such individual tax return shall include all schedules and attachments thereto (e.g.,

- {|IRS Forms W-2) and Forms 1099, as well as any filings required to be sdbmitted to
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any state tax or revenue authority. If Wai does not file a retun, he shall'gproyide his
sworn financial statement on June 30 and December 31 of each caléndar year,
starting on December 31, 2003 and continuing through and including June 30, 2013.

The financial statements shall provide:

a. A true and complete itemization of all of Wai’s rights, title and
interest (or claimed interest) in any asset, wherever, hawever and
by whomever held; :

b. An itemization, description and explanation of all transfers of
assets with a value of $1,000 or more made by or on behalf of
Wai over the preceding six-month interval; and

¢. A detailed description of the source and amount of all of Wai’s
income or earnings, however generated,

16.  Based on the information contained in Wai’s tax returns (and, fo the
extent they are provided, his sworn financial statements) and further instructions
that may be issued by this Court regarding the method of calculating payﬁxcn_ts, the
Monitor shall calculate the Annual Payment to be paid by Wai for that year. On or
before July 31 of each year, the Monitor shall send written notice té Wa’il with
instructions tﬁ immediately pay the Annual Payment to the Monitor.

17.  Wai shall cooperate fully with the Monitor and the Commiséion in
explaining Wai's financial income and earnings, status of assets, ﬂnanciai
statements, asset transfers and tax returns, and shall provide such additionhl
information and documents with respect thereto as may be requestea- by the

Monitor or the Commission. Wai shall also cooperate fully and expe:dmously with
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the Monitor and the Commission in carrying out al] other aspects of hi#-o’bligations
described in this Order.
18.  Wai shall not transfer or cause others to transfer funds or other
property to the custody, possession, or control of any member of hifs family or any

other person for the purpose of concealing such funds or property from the Court,

the Monitor or the Commission.

18.  Any failure by Wai to carry out any of the terms, coxididods or
obligations under any paragraph of this Order shall constitute an Event of Default.
If any Event of Default océurs, the Commission (or its designeé)..Sh?ll be entitled
to:

2. an order requiring immediate payment of any Qn@paid portion of
the civil monetary penalty set forth 2bove in Parégraph 14
above; and/or

b.  move the Court for imposition of all other available remedies,
including, but not limited to, an order holding W?i in contempt |
for violation of this Order. |

20. Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default based upqﬁ a claim or
cause of action that Wai failed to make any Annual Payments when ;iue,‘Wai will
be barred from asserting any defense, including the expiration of any statute of
limitations, waiver, estoppel or laches, where such defense is based §n the alleged

failure of the Commission to pursue such claims or causes of action during the

10
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pendency of this civil action, during the negotiation of the Wai’s Consent to this
Order or while this Order remains in effect. The only issue that Wai may raise in
defense is whether he has made the Annual Payments as directed by the Monitor.
Any motion by the Commission for entry of an order pursuant to this patagraph

requiring payment of less than the full amount of the civil monetary penalty set

1 forth in paragraph 14 above, or any acceptance by the Commissionrqf partial

payment of the Annual Paymehts made by the Wai, shall not be deemed a waiver
of the Commission’s right to require Wai to make further payments pursuant to the
payment plan set forth above, or, in the event of a further Event of Qefault, a

waiver of the Commission’s right to require immediate payment of the entire
ght to reg pay he entire

|remaining balance or any unpaid portion of the civil monetary penalty set forth in

paragraph 14 above.

21. Based upon Wai's representations in his Financial Discliosure
Staternent and. other evidence provided by Wai to the Commission reigarding his
financial condition, the Court is not ordering payment of a civil monétary penalty
other than as required by paragraphs 14 through 16 above. This dete:iminatioh is
contingent upon the accuracy and completeness of Wai's Financial Déisclb#ure
Stétement, other evidence provided by Wai regarding his financial co%u'x_ditj-on,>and
6ther information provided to the Commission. If at any time following the entry
of this Order, the Commission obtains information indicating that Wsa;i 'S '

representations to the Commission concerning his financial conditionior

11
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accounting were fraudulent, misleading, inaccurate or incomplete many. material
respect as of the time such representations were made, the Commissibn inay move
this Court for an order requiring Wai to make immediate payment of hisientire
civil monetary penalty, or of any portion thereof, the amount of whic?h shall be
determined by the Commission. In connection with any such motio:_*g, thg:.-only
issues shall be whether the financial information provided by Wai v;ra;s fraudulent,
misleading, inaccurate or incomplete in any material respect as of the;-tinﬁ sucﬁ
representations were made. In its motion, the Commission may movg .this Court to
consider all available remedies, including, but not limited to, orderixﬁg Wéi to pay
funds or transfer assets or directing the forfeiture of any assets, and ﬂ;e |
Commission may also request additional discovery. Wai may not by way of
defense to such motion, challenge the validity of his Consent or this Order, or
contest any of the Findings set forth in this Order, assert that paymentf of a'cwil
monetary penalty should not be ordered, or contest the amount of the-;ivii
monetéry penalty to be paid. If in such motion, the Commissioﬁ movés fbr, and
the Court orders, payment of less than the full amount of the civil mbrieta;y

penalty, such motion will not be deemed a waiver of the Commission’s right to

require Wai to make further payment pursuant to the payment plian_se;; fofth above.

22.  Upon the entry of this Order, the provisions of the Court’ s August 10,
2001, Order of Preliminary Injunction and Other Equitable Rehef entered agamst

Waj, Acro and Pakco imposing a freeze on their assets shall no lqnget;bpv-';r;}effect.

12
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Upon being served with copies of this Order after entry by the Cb_ur_t, -‘ﬂnancial
institutions and,ofher entities holding frozen funds or other property previously
controlled by Wai, Acro, and Pakco shall tender the funds to the Monitor. The
Monitor shall distribute the funds frozen in the following Acro and Pakco accounts
as restitution to customers of Acro during Wai’s ownership:

a. Bank of America Account #06518-04014

b. Bank of America Account #06513-04187
The identity of these customers is contained in “Exhibit A” filed under sea) with

this Court simultaneously with the filing of this Order.V.

OTHER PROVISIONS

23. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED THAT:

‘Notices: All notices required by this Order shall be sent by.certified mail,
return receipt requested, as follows:
Notice to the Commission:
Director, Division of Enforcement
Commodity Futures Trading Commission
115521 St. NW
Washington, DC 20581
Notice to Monitor:
Vice President,‘.Compliance
National Futures Association
200 West Madison Street
Chicago, IL 60606

13
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Notice to Wai : |
#15 Gogolya Street, Flat #6
Posta] Code 480100

Almaty, Republic of Kazakhstan

24.  In the event that Wai changes his residential or business tcléphone

number(s) and/or address(es) at any time, he shall provide written notice of the |

|{new number(s) and/or address(es) to the Monitor and to the Commission within ten

(10) calendar days thereof,

25 This Order incorporates all of the terms and conditions of the
settlemcnf- among the parties hereto. Nothing shall serve to amend or modify thlS
Order in any respect whatsoever, unless: (1) reduced to writing; (2) signed by all
parties hereto, gnd 3) apﬁroved by order of this Court. |

26.  This Order shall inure to the benefit of and be binding u?on the
Successors, assigns, heirs, beneficiaries, and administrators of the parties hereto.

27, If any provision of this Order or the application of any provisions or
circumstances is held invalid, the remainder of this Order and the appl‘ic'ati.on‘ of tﬁe
provision to any other person or circumstance shall not be affected by the holding.
/

"

/!

"

14
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28.‘5 This Court shall retain jurisdiction ol this cause 10 d$sure complinnee
with this and for all other purposcs rclated to this action,

29.  Upon being served with copies of this Order aiter entn by this Coan,
Wai, Acro, and Pakco or their designated agenl shall sigu an :u-kmm-lcdsnwn; of
such service and serve such acknowledgment on this Courct and the Comimission
within seven (7) calendar days.

30. Upon being served with copies of this Order afier entry by the Cavn,

the Commission shall serve a copy of the Order upon the Monitor within seven (7)

calendar days.

DATBD Zé , 2003

Approved for Entry by:

/Andraw Tai Wai

on. John. F. Walter
istict Court Judece

—— r :

Jemar 17, J003 87 7
Myta D. .\'T'(n':_yl!‘..sh‘r;n‘

' Allorney Tor Plaimis?

Commodity Futuses
Trading Commisaion

R
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Andrew Tai Wai, President
Acro Information Service, Inc.

Dated: ff drs?

%drcw Tai Wai. President

—

Pakco Holdings Limited

-Dated:'\/-‘f- 2o 2

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND CONTTINT:

Dated: @01 g %_"3
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Dared:

Aazfoco. %Oz.

David K.W. Chang, I'sq
Arttorney for Andrew Tai Wi,

Acro Information Smivice. and
Peakeco Haldings Limitwed

1



